better acquainted at each meeting, and as part of a membership campaign, each member was asked to have as a guest sometime during the year a colleague, not a member, in the hope that sharing activities would arouse interest. A determined effort was made to retain the present members and also secure new ones. As a result of this campaign Cincinnati Chapter members came from far beyond the city limits.

Money raising projects could not be neglected and for many years theater parties and the sale of aprons, a Christmas confection, helped provide a balance in the treasury. With Gertrude Bloomer as editor, the Chapter Bulletin made its bow in April 1945. Because of the far-flung membership, the possibility of changing from Cincinnati Chapter to a more comprehensive name was suggested at various times; however this was never done.

The decade of 1947 to 1957 began with a roster of 94 members; the Chapter had lost some of its out-of-state affiliates and gained others. In October 1947 the Cincinnati Chapter lit 20 candles on its birthday cake while dinner guests of Mrs. Carmen Tomasini, librarian, and members of the faculty of the College of Medicine. Two charter members were guests of honor: Grace Stowell, the first president, and E. Gertrude Avey, the first secretary-treasurer.

One Saturday in May 1957, a weekend journey was made to Tennessee for a joint meeting with the Oak Ridge members of the Cincinnati Chapter. Since then this group has formed its own Chapter. The program included a tour of the Institute of Nuclear Studies and the Technical Information Center on the first day and on the second a visit to the Univ. of Tennessee Museum.

In 1954 the Special Libraries Association held its Annual Convention in Cincinnati. Late in 1954 many of the members of the Cincinnati Chapter attended a meeting in Chillicothe, Ohio, at the Mead Corporation. In the year 1955-56 the meetings followed the usual pattern, but the Chapter cooperated with the International Relations Section of Special Libraries Association and paid for a year's subscription to Special Libraries for an Indian librarian. At the Tri-State Library Conference held in Cincinnati in the fall of 1955, the Chapter sponsored an exhibition booth of SLA publications and promoted recruitment.

Spring of 1957 saw the first joint meeting with the Cleveland Chapter, when Battelle Institute in Columbus was host for two days. Members of the Indiana and Pittsburgh Chapters also attended. The 1958 regional meeting was held in Dayton, Ohio, with the Cincinnati Chapter as host. 1959 saw the completion of the Chapter project "The Union List of Scientific and Technical Periodicals in the Libraries of Greater Cincinnati and Vicinity," of which Gertrude Bloomer was editor, assisted by Mrs. Irene Campbell and Mrs. Dorrie Brook.

Every other year during the fall or spring, the Chapter was visited by the Association's President, whom members were most happy to meet and entertain. The golden anniversary year started with a tea at the Taft Museum with invitations going to all past and present members and also to hoped-for future members. This delightful occasion pretends a successful continuation to the year which has passed.

Jean Orr
Mrs. Alice P. Hook

Cleveland

December 19, 1936, ten special librarians met at the Wlishone Restaurant in Cleveland for the purpose of petitioning the SLA Executive Board for a local Chapter. This petition was granted December 7, 1937. However, the roots of the Chapter go back to 1939 when the Cleveland Club of special librarians was formed, with Alice Pown, then librarian of the Hydrosil Fuel Steel Company, as chairman.

In 1939 the Cleveland Library Club was organized with a Special Libraries Section.

The Cleveland Chapter Bulletin was first issued January 20, 1939, under the title Special Libraries Association, Cleveland Chapter Bulletin, and published at least four times each year. During the years 1939 and 1940 it carried the title Cleveland SLA Times, with Mr. C. D. Vormelter as editor. The last issue under this title was November 1940. Special Libraries Association, Cleveland Chapter Bulletin was resumed in October 1942.

Meetings are held not less than four times during the Chapter year, the time and place determined by the president in cooperation with the program chairman, and subject to the approval of the Chapter's Executive Board. They are held usually in the immediate Cleveland area, but have been held in Akron, Painesville, Wooster, Columbus, and jointly with other Chapters in Pittsburgh, Detroit, Columbus and Dayton. The Cleveland Chapter has members from Akron, Barberton, Cambridge, Canton, Chagrin Falls, Columbus, Galion, Granville, Lorain, Mansfield, North Canton, Painesville, Solon, Wickliffe, Wooster, Youngstown and Erie, Pennsylvania.

Many honors have been conferred by Cleveland members through the years. Outstanding among these was the granting to Rose L. Vormelter, then head, Business Information Bureau, Cleveland Public Library, of the Association's 1953 Professional Award, and in December, 1959, the luncheon and citation of the Public Relations Society of America, Northeast Ohio Chapter, in tribute to Mrs. Vormelter for "For distinguished contributions to business judgment in recognition of twenty-five years of pioneering activity and outstanding service." In February of 1957, Mrs. Zelda Miller, Cleveland Field Office, United States Department of Commerce, was awarded the Department of Commerce Silver Medal for Meritorious Service and a citation "For sustained effectiveness and versatility in the performance of a variety of assigned duties in the Cleveland Field Office."

The Chapter has cooperated with other associations at local level. These have included joint meetings with: American Association for the Advancement of Science, American Chemical Society, American Documentation Institute, American Society for Metals, American Statistical Association, Association of College and Reference Librarians, Cleveland Technical Societies Council, Kent State University Library Symposium, National Metals Exposition and Congress and Metals Division of Special Libraries Association.

In 1944-45 the Cleveland Chapter cooperated with the Red Cross in its Blood Donor Drive by sending notices to people in Greater Cleveland who had not participated for six months. In 1945 the Chapter assisted in the establishment of a library for the WAVES in the Allerton Hotel. Also in 1945 cards for a shelf list for the Erie Hospital Library were given call numbers.
Special library exhibits were set up at the following meetings held in Cleveland: American Association for the Advancement of Science, 1955; National Chemical Exposition, 1956; National Metals Congress in October of 1955, 1956 and 1958. In 1957 the Chapter helped to compile a union list of current periodicals received in the libraries of the Greater Cleveland Chapter. This was sent to Western Reserve University to be included in its union catalog. Again in 1958, a list was started and was printed in 1959. In 1958 the beginnings were made for the establishment of a card catalog to be kept in the Technology Section of the Cleveland Public Library. In 1958 the union list of technical periodicals in Cleveland Chapter libraries was set up in the Technology Division of the Cleveland Public Library.

Membership rosters, by individuals and by companies, were compiled irregularly until 1955. There have been published yearly since that time, frequently as a special issue of the regular bulletin. The Procedures Manual of the Cleveland Chapter was compiled in 1950. In 1953 the Translation Pool was kept in Cleveland until SLA Executive Board action transferred it to another agency. The Serials Committee has maintained lists of duplicate magazines for exchange since 1951.

On October 6, 1950, the Cleveland Club of Special Librarians was in charge of the second day of the 26th Annual Conference of the Ohio Library Association, with Alta B. Claffin, librarian of the Federal Reserve Bank, presiding. From 1952 and every year thereafter until 1955, special libraries had a place on the program of the Ohio Library Association.

The Cleveland Chapter has participated in some of the Kent State University Library symposiums and with Western Reserve University in the Conference on Practical Utilization of Recorded Knowledge and other documentation institutes.

Methods discussion meetings, planned by the Education Committee, began in April 1945 and have continued throughout the present year, with at least one meeting a year designated as a method meeting. A special series was planned in 1954 held on alternate weeks from February to April (See: A Methods Series is Planned by the Cleveland Chapter by Helen M. Focke and Agnes O. Hanson, Special Libraries 57(5):229-6, September 1946).

Evening classes in library science for special librarians were inaugurated at the Western Reserve University Library School through the efforts of a special Committee on Recruitment and Education. The first course offered was the general reference course, conducted by a Cleveland member, Meredith Wright.

In 1946, the Education Committee developed a "Recruiting through Vocational Guidance" project in which it contacted vocational guidance counselors of Greater Cleveland to present the special libraries field to young people. Two talks were given in this program, one by Helen Focke before the Northern Ohio section of the National Vocational Guidance Association in January, and one by Agnes Hanson to John Marshall High School students during vocational week, April 1946. In 1947, letters were mailed to vocational counselors of 70 schools and colleges in the Cleveland area, summarizing opportunities in and preparation for special library work.

In 1951, special library work as a career for women was discussed as part of a talk on "Occupations for Women in Chemical and Physical Research" by Mrs. Valeria Elenesh at Oberlin College. Also in 1951, Meredith Wright spoke on special library work over a New York radio network.

In 1953, a mimeographed recruitment letter was sent out by the Public Relations Committee to vocational directors of 48 schools in the Cleveland area. Other vocational talks given were by Margaret C. Ball at Olmsted Falls School and Agnes Hansen at Painesville High School.

In 1957 and 1958, a long-range recruitment program was inaugurated. A letter was written to vocational guidance directors of 20 boards of education in the Cleveland area, and a similar one to eight colleges in northeastern Ohio. A pictorial flip-chart presentation, consisting of a series of large chart-size pictures in colored cut-out form with accompanying script, was prepared and coordinated with a short talk describing special librarianship, which has been given before several groups by Mary Evelyn Crookston and Elaine Grant. A system of sponsorship by Cleveland Chapter members of library school students from Western Reserve University and Kent State University who evidenced any interest in special librarianship was initiated in 1957.

The Cleveland Chapter has been a regular contributor to the Special Libraries Association Scholarship and Loan Fund.

The 31st Annual SLA Convention was held in Cleveland June 10-12, 1951. The Chapter has also been host to two SLA Executive Board and Advisory Council Meetings; one in September 1930, the other in November 1948.

Elizabeth B. Marshall

Colorado

The Colorado Chapter took its first step toward organization at a meeting held in Denver on December 1, 1950. It was attended by 23 persons, with Melbourne Davidson, librarian, Colorado State Department of Public Welfare, as chairman and Phoebe F. Hayes, librarian, National Farmers Union, as secretary.

This group held a second meeting on February 9, 1951. On March 9, 1951, the charter petition of the new Chapter was accepted by the SLA Executive Board. On April 29, 1951, the first regular meeting of the Chapter was held at the School of Business Administration, University of Denver, at which time the Association's President, Mrs. Elizabeth Owens, conducted the installation ceremonies.

The Chapter bulletin, The Columbine, was first issued in September 1951. It is published four times a year. Its first editor, who was greatly assisted by the president of the Chapter, was Phoebe F. Hayes.

After the first year, when four meetings were held, the Chapter has met five or six times annually, usually in Denver. Surrounding libraries in Golden and Boulder and in Laramie, Wyoming, also have been hosts to the Chapter, with other out-of-town visits planned. The Chapter usually meets once annually with the Colorado Library Association; these meetings have been held in Colorado Springs, Estes Park and Boulder; two meetings have been held jointly with the Mountain-Plains Library Association at Jackson Hole, Wyoming, and in Denver.

The Chapter received recognition of its membership activities when it was awarded the SLA Membership Gavel at the 1952 SLA Convention.

The Colorado Chapter cooperated with the Bibliographical Center for Research in 1955 and 1956 in its "File-a-mile Project" to file 1,000,000 cards in its union cata-
Special library exhibits were set up at the following meetings held in Cleveland: American Association for the Advancement of Science, 1957; National Chemical Exposition, 1955; National Metals Congress in October of 1955, 1957 and 1958. In 1957 the Chapter helped to compile a union list of current periodicals received in the libraries of the Greater Cleveland Chapter. This was sent to Western Reserve University to be included in its union catalog. Again in 1958, a list was started and was printed in 1959. In 1959 the beginnings were made for the establishment of a card catalog to be kept in the Technology Section of the Cleveland Public Library. In 1958 the union list of technical periodicals in Cleveland Chapter libraries was set up in the Technology Division of the Cleveland Public Library.

Membership rosters, by individuals and by companies, were compiled irregularly until 1945. These have been published yearly since that time, frequently as a special issue of the regular bulletin. The Procedures Manual of the Cleveland Chapter was compiled in 1950. In 1957 the Translations Pool was kept in Cleveland until SLA Executive Board action transferred it to another agency. The Serials Committee has maintained lists of duplicate magazines for exchange since 1951.

On October 6, 1950, the Cleveland Club of Special Librarians was in charge of the second day of the 26th Annual Conference of the Ohio Library Association, with Alta B. Claffin, librarian of the Federal Reserve Bank, presiding. From 1952 and every year thereafter until 1957, special libraries had a place on the program of the Ohio Library Association.

The Cleveland Chapter has participated in some of the Kent State University Library symposiums and with Western Reserve University in the Conference on Practical Utilization of Recorded Knowledge and other documentation institutes.

Methods discussion meetings, planned by the Education Committee, began in April 1954 and have continued through the present year, with at least one meeting a year designated as a methods meeting. A special series was planned in 1955 held on alternate weeks from February to April (See: A Methods Series is Planned by the Cleveland Chapter by Helen M. Focke and Agnes O. Hanson, Special Libraries 37:229-6, September 1947).

Evening classes in library science for special librarians were inaugurated at the Western Reserve University Library School through the efforts of a special Committee on Recruitment and Education. The first course offered was the general reference course, conducted by a Cleveland member, Meredith Wright.

In 1956, the Education Committee developed a "Recruiting through Vocational Guidance" project in which it contacted vocational guidance counselors of Greater Cleveland to present the special libraries field to young people. Two talks were given in this program, one by Helen Focke before the Northern Ohio section of the National Vocational Guidance Association in January, and one by Agnes Hanson to John Marshall High School students during vocational week, April 1956. In 1957, letters were mailed to vocational counselors at 70 schools and colleges in the Cleveland area, summarizing opportunities in and preparation for special library work.

In 1957, special library work as a career for women was discussed as part of a talk on "Occupations for Women in Chemical and Physical Research" by Mrs. Valeria Erlenheit at Oberlin College. Also in 1957, Meredith Wright spoke on special library work over a New York radio network.

In 1958, a mimeographed recruitment letter was sent out by the Public Relations Committee to vocational directors of 48 schools in the Cleveland area. Other vocational talks given were by Margaret C. Ball at Olmsted Falls School and Agnes Hansen at Painesville High School.

In 1957 and 1958, a long-range recruitment program was inaugurated. A letter was written to vocational guidance directors of 20 boards of education in the Cleveland area, and a similar one to eight colleges in northeastern Ohio. A pictorial flip-chart presentation, consisting of a series of large chart-size pictures in colored cartoon form with accompanying script, was prepared and coordinated with a short talk describing special librarianship, which has been given before several groups by Mary Ethyl Crookston and Elsie Grant. A system of sponsorship by Cleveland Chapter members of library school students from Western Reserve University and Kent State University who evidenced any interest in special librarianship was initiated in 1957.

The Cleveland Chapter has been a regular contributor to the Special Libraries Association Scholarship and Loan Fund.

The 34th Annual SLA Convention was held in Cleveland June 10-13, 1951. The Chapter has also been host to two SLA Executive Board and Advisory Council Meetings: one in September 1950, the other in November 1958.

ELIZABETH B. MARSHALL

Colorado

The Colorado Chapter took its first step toward organization at a meeting held in Denver on December 1, 1950. It was attended by 23 persons, with Melbourne Davidson, librarian, Colorado State Department of Public Welfare, as chairman and Phoebe F. Hayes, librarian, National Farmery Union, as secretary.

This group held a second meeting on February 9, 1951. On March 9, 1951, the charter petition of the new Chapter was accepted by the SLA Executive Board. On April 29, 1951, the first regular meeting of the Chapter was held at the School of Business Administration, University of Denver, at which time the Association's President, Mrs. Elizabeth Owen, conducted the installation ceremonies.

The Chapter bulletin, The Columbine, was first issued in September 1951. It is published four times a year. Its first editor, who was greatly assisted by the president of the Chapter, was Phoebe F. Hayes.

After the first year, when four meetings were held, the Chapter has met five or six times annually, usually in Denver. Surrounding libraries in Golden and Boulder and in Laramie, Wyoming, also have been hosts to the Chapter, with other out-of-town visits planned. The Chapter usually meets once annually with the Colorado Library Association; these meetings have been held in Colorado Springs, Estes Park and Boulder; two meetings have been held jointly with the Mountain Plains Library Association at Jackson Hole, Wyoming, and in Denver.

The Chapter received recognition of its membership activities when it was awarded the SLA Membership Gavel at the 1952 SLA Convention.

The Colorado Chapter cooperated with the Bibliographical Center for Research in 1955 and 1956 in its "File-a-mile Project" to file 1,000,000 cards in its union cata-

22
23
The first bulletin came out in time to announce the first official meeting of the Chapter in September 1934. The vice-president and bulletin editor was Mrs. Grace Child Bevan, Phoenix Mutual Life Insurance Company. A printed bulletin was published beginning with the November 1939 issue; the photo-offset process replaced mimeographing and paid advertisements were included. In July 1939 the printed newsletter was discontinued, as the income from advertisements was not sufficient.

Among the highlights of the early years was the preparation, by Laura Eades in 1938, of the Directories for the Business Man and in 1939 the establishment of a Student Loan Fund, for which the Chapter raised $679.50. In 1941 the Annual Convention of SLA was held in Hartford.

The war years, 1940-44, were busy ones for the Chapter. Its activities were many and included sending to Britain bundles of comic strips for children to read in shelters, participation in the Victory Book Campaign and the preparation of defense and emergency bibliography. During this period the Chapter celebrated its tenth anniversary at Bridgeport. Walter Hausdorfer, SLA President, was the guest of honor and spoke at the meeting.

In the post-war years, 1945-47, an effort was made to return to a schedule of five or six meetings a year (four had been held during the wartime period); the Manual of Officers’ and Committee Chairmen’s Rules was revised; a compilation was begun of periodical holdings in the Connecticut Chapter; the Connecticut and Boston Chapters sponsored a joint meeting at the 1947 New England Library Association Conference at Swampscott.

In January 1948 the Chapter entertained a Norwegian student, Anne Lows, who had obtained a library degree at Columbia on a SLA scholarship.

The name of the Chapter was changed by constitutional amendment in 1948 to Connecticut Valley Chapter. In 1950 a Chapter who's who was published. In the same year a Science-Technology Group was organized, and the Chapter received the SLA Membership Gavel Award. A Springfield, Massachusetts, Section of the Chapter was formed in 1951.

In 1958 two projects begun in previous years were completed and published. The first was the Directory of Special Libraries in the Connecticut Valley. Information concerning 109 special libraries was listed on 34 pages to make a very attractive and useful directory. Mrs. Henrietta T. Perkins was the compiler and chairman. A Union List of Periodicals in Special Libraries in the Connecticut Valley was published in the early part of 1958. Thirty-three libraries contributed to this list, and their holdings for over 1,200 different periodical titles were given. John Munier was chairman of the committee and worked diligently on it, assisted by Mrs. Theda Bashett, Marie E. Boizen and Marion G. Lechner.

Emily C. Coates

**Connecticut Valley**

In the fall of 1930 efforts were made to form a Connecticut Chapter of SLA. In October 1930, at the Connecticut Library Association meeting, a special round-table group was called together at the Mohican Hotel in New London. Florence Bradley came from New York and six or seven librarians were present from Hartford and Springfield. These early efforts at organization were not successful, although several of those present at the meeting became charter members of the Chapter four years later when, on March 17, 1934, a group of librarians met in Hartford to discuss the possibility of forming a Chapter in the vicinity. About a month later, on April 22, another meeting was held in the Broad Street YWCA, to which eight members of the New York Chapter and 15 Connecticut librarians came. The SLA president, Mary Louise Alexander, urged the building organization to spread; Christian Duce, President of the Connecticut Library Association, suggested a round table at the next SLA conference and appointed Rosamond Cruikshank chairman.

This Conference was held in New Britain at the State Teachers College on May 17, 1934. Although about 30 invitations were mailed, not more than a dozen librarians were able to attend the Special Libraries Round Table. Of these, only seven or eight were qualified by membership in SLA to sign the petition for a Chapter, and the necessary ten signatures were secured by visits to three other libraries during the following 24 hours. The petition was then mailed to SLA Headquarters, together with the names of the proposed officers. Laura A. Eades, of the Bridgeport Public Library, was the first president.

**Georgia**

The Georgia Chapter was founded in Atlanta on October 30, 1932, and its application for affiliation with SLA was approved December 19 of the same year by the Association's Executive Board. There were 13 charter members. Frances Mise, Emory University School of Business Administration, was the first president.
log. Members of the Chapter have held office and committee appointments in the Medical Library Association, Colorado Library Association, Denver District Association of the State Library Association and the Bibliographical Center for Research, Rocky Mountain Region. The president of the Colorado Chapter serves annually on the Advisory Committee of the School of Librarianship of the University of Denver; members of the Association lecture frequently at the School and accept library school students for practice training.

Membership directories have been issued by the Chapter each year since its founding. The Chapter revised its constitution and bylaws in 1954 and 1956 and in 1952 prepared a Chapter Manual; at present a Manual Committee is working on a revised edition. A salary survey of the membership was completed in 1958.

Special recognition was given to the activities of the Chapter's Recruitment Committee in 1956 when other Chapters asked to use the letter the committee had sent out to members of every secondary school in the Denver area in an effort to interest high school students in librarianship as a career. This letter was later chosen by Association Headquarters to mail to all Chapter recruitment chairmen.

The Chapter has contributed twice to the SLA Scholarship and Loan Fund and, for the past two years, it has appointed liaison officers as contact points for foreign librarians visiting Denver. The Chapter also provided a subscription to a library periodical for a foreign librarian in 1955 and 1957.

### Connecticut Valley

In the fall of 1950 reports were made to form a Connecticut Chapter of SLA. In October 1950, at the Connecticut Library Association meeting, a special round-table group was called together at the Mohican Hotel in New London. Florence Bradley came from New York and six or seven librarians were present from Hartford and Springfield. These early efforts at organization were not successful, although several of those present at the meeting became charter members of the Chapter four years later when, on March 17, 1954, a group of librarians met in Hartford to discuss the possibility of forming a Chapter in the vicinity. About a month later, on April 25, another meeting was held in the Broad Street YWCA, to which eight members of the New York Chapter and 15 Connecticut librarians came. The SLA president, Mary Louise Alexander, urged the building organization to sponsor Christian Duse, President of the Connecticut Library Association, suggested a round table at the next SLA Conference and appointed Rosamond Cruikshank chairman.

This Conference was held in New Britain at the State Teachers College on May 17, 1954. Although about 20 invitations were mailed, not more than a dozen librarians were able to attend the Special Libraries Round Table. Of these, only seven or eight were qualified by membership in SLA to sign the petition for a Chapter, and the necessary ten signatures were secured by visit to three other libraries during the following 24 hours. The petition was then mailed to SLA Headquarters, together with the names of the proposed officers, Laura A. Eades, of the Bridgeport Public Library, was the first president.

The first bulletin came out in time to announce the first official meeting of the Chapter in September 1954. The vice-president and bulletin editor was Mrs. Grace Child Bevan, Phoenix Mutual Life Insurance Company. A printed bulletin was published beginning with the November 1950 issue; the photo-offset process replaced mimeographing and paid advertisements were included. In July 1953 the printed bulletin was discontinued, as the income from advertisements was not sufficient.

Among the highlights of the early years was the preparation, by Laura Eades in 1956, of the Directories for the Business Man and in 1959 the establishment of a Student Loan Fund, for which the Chapter raised $650. In 1941 the Annual Convention of SLA was held in Hartford. The next years, 1940-44, were busy ones for the Chapter. Its activities were many and included sending to Britain bundles of comic strips for children to read in shelters, participation in the Victory Book Campaign and the preparation of defense and resources bibliographies. During this period the Chapter celebrated its tenth anniversary at Bridgeport. Walter Hausdorfer, SLA President, was the guest of honor and spoke at the meeting.

In the post-war years, 1946-47, an effort was made to return to a schedule of three or six meetings a year (four had been held during the wartime period); the Manual of Officers' and Committee Chairmen's Rules was revised; a compilation was begun of periodical holdings in the Connecticut Chapter; the Connecticut and Boston Chapters sponsored a joint meeting at the 1957 New England Library Association Conference at Swampscott.

In January 1958 the Chapter entertained a Norwegian student, Anne Lovaas, who had obtained a library degree at Columbia on a SLA scholarship.

The name of the Chapter was changed by constitutional amendment in 1958 to Connecticut Valley Chapter. In 1961 a Chapter who's who was published. In the same year a Science-Technology Group was organized, and the Chapter received the SLA Membership Gavel Award. A Springfield, Massachusetts, Section of the Chapter was formed in 1957.

In 1958 two projects begun in previous years were completed and published. The first was the Directory of Special Libraries in the Connecticut Valley. Information concerning 199 special libraries was listed on 34 pages to make a very attractive and useful directory. Mrs. Henrietta T. Perkins was the compiler and chairman.

A Union List of Periodicals in Special Libraries in the Connecticut Valley was published in the early part of 1958. Thirty-three libraries contributed to this list, and their holdings for over 1,000 different periodical titles were given. John Minier was chairman of the committee and worked diligently on it, assisted by Mrs. Theda Basnett, Marie E. Bohnenhard and Marion G. Lechner.

### Georgia

The Georgia Chapter was founded in Atlanta on October 30, 1952, and its application for affiliation with SLA was approved December 19 of the same year by the Association's Executive Board. There were 13 charter members. Frances Muse, Emory University School of Business Administration, was the first president.
Meetings are held about six times a year, primarily in Atlanta; however, some are scattered throughout the area. The Bulletin, which is issued five to six times a year during those months when meetings do not occur, was first published in December 1935, with Mrs. Martha Jane K. Zachert as editor.

From time to time the Chapter has cooperated with the Southern Library Association, the Georgia Library Association, the Atlanta Library Club and the American Association for the Advancement of Science. At the 1926 Annual Convention of the last named organization, held in the Atlanta auditorium, the Chapter manned a library booth.

The Chapter participated in a panel discussion on the September 29, 1924, South-eastern Library Association Convention on "The Management of Archives in Special Libraries." On November 2-3, 1956, it held a Conference on Work Simplification at Emory University.

In May 1935, the Chapter had the privilege of hearing an interesting talk on Indian libraries by Dr. Manek Bapaji Vajifdar, assistant librarian, Tata Institute of Fundamental Research, Bombay, India. Dr. Vajifdar was one of a group of foreign librarians brought to the United States for internship in leading American libraries under a joint program of the ALA and the United States State Department.

Another interesting speaker at the March 26, 1957, meeting was Dr. Johann Marie Huber, director of the Department of Archaeology in Austria and who left from the National Museum of Austria.

One of the Chapter's proudest possessions, if not the proudest, is the SLA Membership Gavel, which it won permanently on June 6, 1956, after leading in SLA Chapter membership for three consecutive years.

Biennially the Chapter presents its Dogwood Award to the Chapter member, not a member of the Executive Board, who has contributed the most to the Chapter. Frances E. Kaiscr, Chairman of the Membership Committee, won the 1956 Dogwood Award, and in October 1956 it was presented jointly to Dorothy Jones and Miss Marion Taylor.

The Chapter's 1957-58 Recruitment Committee, under the chairmanship of Mrs. Martha Jane Zachert, worked out a traveling exhibit that can be borrowed for display by colleges and library schools in Georgia. The plan was approved as a pilot project for the entire Association. Members have also helped bring special librarianship to the attention of the public by taking part in discussion and interview programs on local TV and radio stations.

In addition to its bulletin, the Chapter has engaged in an active publication program. The preliminary edition of Directory of Libraries Represented in the Georgia Chapter of Special Libraries Association was issued in May 1955 and was succeeded in October 1958 by Directory of Chapter Libraries and Librarians. A Selected List of Commercial Services Received by Member Libraries in the Atlanta Area was prepared by William Noyes in 1956, and during that same year the Chapter published Microfilm Abstracts Author Index, volumes 1-11, to which 24 members contributed their time and effort. Miss Marion Taylor edited Guide to Latin American Reference Materials: A Union List For Use in the Atlanta-Atlanta Area, which appeared in the fall of 1957, and a committee is currently compiling material for a work tentatively entitled Brief Biographies of the Governors of the State of Georgia. In March 1959 Special Libraries Association published Translators and Translations: Services and Sources, a project of the Georgia Chapter edited by Frances E. Kaiscr.

MARK B. CARTHAM

Greater St. Louis

This Greater St. Louis Chapter of SLA was founded December 15, 1941, at St. Louis, Missouri. Seventeen librarians signed the petition as charter members, Ida Mae Hummond, librarian, Ralston-Purina Company, was the first president.

Five meetings are held each year, together with a biennial joint meeting with the Heart of America Chapter at a mid-Missouri city. Joint meetings are also held each year with the St. Louis Library Club. The Slate, the Chapter's bulletin, was first published in February 1942, with Allen G. Ring as editor. It is issued five times a year.

Special events have included: participation in the American Book Center for War Devastated Libraries in 1946; SLA library exhibits at the AAAS Convention in 1953 and at the American Gas Association Convention, 1953; a radio program, "Quiz of Two Cities," February 20, 1949, on which contestants were members of the Greater St. Louis Chapter and the Heart of America Chapter; the participation of SLA members, Dr. Andrew J. Eaton, Washington University, James Jones, St. Louis University, and Elizabeth Owens, Union Electric Company, on a panel discussing "Library Work as a Career" with public school and university libraries in March 1957; and, in cooperation with ALA, an exhibit on library work as a career at the American Personnel and Guidance Association Convention in 1958.

In the field of publications, the Chapter published in 1946, 1949 and 1953 a Directory of Special Libraries in the St. Louis Area and in 1957, A Union List of Serials in the Special Libraries of the St. Louis Area.

Eight Chapter members have served as officers not only of SLA but also of other library associations. Dr. Jerrold Orne, director of libraries, Washington University, and Elizabeth Owens have given courses in special librarianship at Washington University. Members have spoken on "Recruitment for Special Librarianship" at high schools, PTA meetings, church groups, colleges and civic and women's clubs.

Two foreign students, Anne Margrethe Lovas of Norway and Kishori Sanzquis, assistant librarian, Federal Reserve Bank of Bombay, India, visited in 1948.

In 1954 the Chapter contributed the sum of $325 to the SLA Scholarship and Loan Fund in memory of Allen G. Ring. It also suggested to the SLA Executive Board that other Chapters and Divisions be urged to establish such a fund in memory of SLA members. At the Chapter Christmas party each year special contributions are made to this Fund.

In 1949 the Chapter won the SLA Membership Gavel Award, and in June 1943 Ethel March Guinier, Membership Chairman, received a $50 war bond for the largest percentage increase in Chapter membership. The SLA Professional Award of 1957 was presented to Chapter member, Mrs. Elizabeth W. Owens.

Although the Chapter has never been host to a SLA Convention, it was host to the Association Executive Board and Advisory Council meetings, October 16-17, 1950. St. Louis is scheduled to be the Convention city in 1954.

MRS. ELIZABETH W. OWENS
Meetings are held about six times a year, primarily in Atlanta; however, some are scattered throughout the area. The Bulletin, which is issued five to six times a year during those months when meetings do not occur, was first published in December 1953, with Mrs. Martha Jane Zachtel as editor.

From time to time the Chapter has cooperated with the Southern Library Association, the Georgia Library Association, the Atlanta Library Club and the American Association for the Advancement of Science. At the 1924 Annual Convention of the last named organization, held in the Atlanta auditorium, the Chapter manned a library booth.

The Chapter participated in a panel discussion at the September 29, 1924, Southeastern Library Association Convention on “The Management of Archives in Special Libraries.” On November 2-3, 1956, it held a Conference on Work Simplification at Emory University.

In May 1955, the Chapter had the privilege of hearing an interesting talk on Indian libraries by Dr. Maneck Bapji Vajifdar, assistant librarian, Tata Institute of Fundamental Research, Bombay, India. Dr. Vajifdar was one of a group of foreign librarians brought to the United States for internship in leading American libraries under a joint program of the ALA and the United States State Department. Another interesting speaker at the March 26, 1957, meeting was Dr. Johanns Marie Huberl, director of the Department of Archaeology in Austria and on leave from the National Museum of Austria.

One of the Chapter’s proudest possessions, if not the proudest, is the SLA Membership Gavel, which it won permanently on June 6, 1956, after leading in SLA Chapter membership for three consecutive years.

Bicentennially the Chapter presents its Dogwood Award to the Chapter member, not a member of the Executive Board, who has contributed the most to the Chapter. Frances E. Kaisler, Chairman of the Membership Committee, won the 1956 Dogwood Award, and in October 1958 it was presented jointly to Dorothy Jones and Miss Marion Taylor.

The Chapter’s 1957-58 Recruitment Committee, under the chairmanship of Mrs. Martha Jane Zachtel, worked out a traveling exhibit that can be borrowed for display by colleges and library schools in Georgia. The plan was approved as a pilot recruitment project for the entire Association. Members have also helped bring special librarianship to the attention of the public by taking part in discussion and interview programs on local TV and radio stations.

In addition to its bulletin, the Chapter has engaged in an active publication program. The preliminary edition of Directory of Libraries Represented in the Georgia Chapter of Special Libraries Association was issued in May 1955 and was succeeded in October 1958 by Directory of Chapters Libraries and Librarians. A Selected List of Commercial Services Received by Member Libraries in the Atlanta Area was prepared by William Noyes in 1956, and during that same year the Chapter published Microform Abstracts Author Index, volumes 1-11, to which 24 members contributed their time and effort. Miss Marion Taylor edited Guide to Latin American Reference Materials: A Union List For Use in the Atlanta-Atlanta Area, which appeared in the fall of 1957; and a committee is currently compiling material for a work tentatively entitled Brief Biographies of the Governors of the State of Georgia. In March 1959 Special Libraries Association published Translations and Translations: Services and Sources, a project of the Georgia Chapter edited by Frances E. Kaisler.